
HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

Present 
Councilor Mike Beilstein, Chair 
Councilor Penny York 
Councilor Bruce Sorte 

Visitors 

February 19, 2013 

Staff 
Ken Gibb, Community Development Director 
Carrie Mullens, City Manager's Office 

Jennifer Moore, United Way of Benton and Lincoln Counties (UWBLC) Executive Director 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 

Held for 
Information Further 

Agenda Item Only Review Recommendations 

I. Social Services Semi- Accept the Social Services first 
Annual Report semi-annual report for Fiscal Year 

2012-13 

II. Other Business 
• Committee charge, Yes 

role, and work plan 
• Next meeting March 5 

Chair Beilstein called the meeting to order at 2:03 pm. 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 

I. Social Services Semi-Annual Report (Attachment) 

Chair Beilstein said he was impressed with the variety and quality of services provided 
by Corvallis non-profits. He noted that, according to the report addendum, funding 
allocation issues for the Corvallis Cold Weather Shelter appeared to be resolved. 

Mr. Gibb reported that this semi-annual report covers the first and second quarters of 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-13. Reporting has evolved over time based on feedback from the 
Human Services Committee (HSC). The report reflects UWBLC efforts to address 
reporting requirements with preferences of the previous HSC. 

Ms. Moore referred to the report addendum that includes the final 12-month report from 
the Corvallis Homeless Shelter Coalition (CHSC) for FY 2011-12. She explained that 
the CHSC position the allocation funded was not filled at the start of the spending period 
(July 1, 2011 ). Council approved a revised spending period to allow CHSC time to fill 
the position. When the final report was submitted, UWBLC learned the position was 



Human Services Committee 
February 19, 2013 
Page 2 of6 

filled in February 2012 and CHSC requested to spend the last portion of the allocation 
in January 2013 which was one month outside of the revised funding period approved 
by Council. UWBLC had previously paid the total allocation. Following a meeting with 
the CHSC Director, UWBLC is comfortable with the program. The report addendum 
includes an explanation, request to extend the spending period by one month (those 
services had already been provided and CHSC already had the funds), and a report 
outlining services provided during the extended spending period. 

Mr. Gibb stated appreciation for the diligence of UWBLC in meeting with CHSC and City 
staff to ensure funds were used appropriately. 

Ms. Moore said the UWBLC Community Impact Committee is reviewing the semi-annual 
report to provide additional oversight and identify concerns. She noted that the request 
for proposals has been issued for the next funding cycle and discussions are occurring 
with various agencies. It appears the same number of program applicants will be 
involved in this next cycle. UWBLC is currently recruiting for the FY 2013-14 granting 
committee. 

In response to Councilor York's inquiry, Ms. Moore confirmed that UWBLC is aware of 
a potential calendar conflict and will make necessary adjustments. 

In response to Chair Beilstein's inquiry, Ms. Moore explained that the Community Impact 
Committee will follow-up with organizations after reviewing the semi-annual report. Their 
review is germane to the next funding cycle and issues will be communicated to the 
granting committee. Mr. Gibb added that the Social Services Policy approved by 
Council during the February 4 meeting will be used for the FY 2013-14 funding cycle. 

Chair Beilstein said he assumed the purpose of the Community Impact Committee was 
to keep allocations aligned with needs. He anticipates major changes to allocations in 
the future. 

Ms. Moore clarified that the purpose of the Community Impact Committee review is an 
accountability measure for the City as a funding source and for UWBLC donors. Any 
information provided for a future funding cycle would be included as background 
information. This could involve overall administration, bench marks, capacity or ability 
to deliver services, and/or other factors. 

Councilor Sorte said the Extension Service teaches organizations how to distinguish 
activities and outcome. He hopes that the report reviews by the Community Impact 
Committee will result in those members learning strong audit skills. As the committee 
works with agencies, it will be important for them to suggest ways to improve impacts 
or make impacts more consistent with funding. This method will not compromise the 
value of the agency and works better than finding mistakes, processing corrective 
action, and forcing agencies to report again. 



Human Services Committee 
February 19, 2013 
Page 3 of6 

Councilor Sorte stated support for the reporting method. He noted that it would be 
useful to include a prior year column so he could identify changes in funding support, 
personnel, and other categories. The CHSC (Daytime Drop-in Center) report is a good 
example of how including descriptive stories helps the reader better understand 
associated numbers and he suggested including more reports similar to CHSC. 

Ms. Moore responded that UWBLC previously requested testimonials every reporting 
period. It is a better balance between reporting and providing services to only request 
the testimonials annually. Councilor Sorte agreed. 

Chair Beilstein said the current method of reporting is an improvement for the City and 
agencies. Previously, UWBLC and staff spent a lot of time examining reports and 
recommending sanctions for those not complying. It was burdensome for agencies, City 
staff, and Council. 

Councilor York commented about the importance and usefulness of the quantitative data 
and qualitative piece of each program report. She noted a level of concern in the 
community about the sustainability and fragility of small, but highly committed non
profits. The agencies work well together, but most do not have a path to learn how to 
be an executive director. 

Councilor York commended the safe housing program offered by Heartland Humane 
Society and shared her personal experience with the program. 

Councilor York referred to a comment in the Jackson Street Youth Shelter (JSYS) report 
about youth not able to return to their families due to problems in the household. She 
said many times teens cannot go back to their families because they will not comply with 
rules to keep themselves and others safe. She said the comment is a mis-statement 
and expressed hope that JSYS understands that families are not always the problem. 

The Committee unanimously recommends Council accept the Social Services first semi
annual report for Fiscal Year 2012-13. 

II. Other Business 

Councilor York said she would like to review the HSC role and work plan. This includes 
current activities and looking ahead to broader issues that HSC may want to explore. 
She noted that it appears most standing committee agenda items are staff driven. She 
is interested in a broader discussion of the HSC charge and how to advance issues 
instead of only being a responsive committee. She inquired whether there are broader 
issues that can be expanded and discussed by HSC. 



Human Services Committee 
February 19, 2013 
Page 4 of6 

Councilor Sorte stated agreement with Councilor York. He said he was surprised that 
the memorandum he received cancelling the February 5 HSC meeting did not come 
from Chair Beilstein or on his behalf. His expectation was that he receive a phone call 
indicating there were no issues for the agenda and asking if he had anything to add. At 
that point, the Chair would request open agenda items and the Committee would decide 
whether to meet. This should be driven by the Chair rather than staff. 

Chair Beilstein said it has not been up to the Chair of HSC to determine what is on the 
agenda and/or whether to cancel a meeting. He expressed doubt that the other 
standing committee agendas were processed differently. Standing committees do not 
determine their own work plan, they work on items determined by the full Council. It is 
for this reason that the agendas are staff driven. Some agenda items move to 
committee level based on automatically scheduled reviews and other items are 
forwarded per Council directive. The speed of any item coming forward to a standing 
committee is dependent upon staff support since most topics require some staff 
preparation. He added that he does not feel like he is not doing his job because he 
leaves the agenda up to staff. 

Chair Beilstein said there may be additional items for HSC depending on Council's final 
goals. One item may be the goal under consideration that is related to citizen 
participation in government. 

Councilor York said she can discuss issues the full Council is considering with individual 
Councilors. If HSC is considering an issue, she cannot contact either of the other two 
Councilors who serve on HSC as it would constitute a quorum. She inquired about 
when there may be opportunity for HSC members to have a general conversation about 
an issue. She does not mind having the conversation during a public meeting, but is not 
comfortable with prescribed agendas and not having an opportunity for discussion. 

Councilor York said she had commented to Ms. Moore about fragility in the human 
services network. She opined that this is a topic that would be reasonable for HSC to 
explore without staff being concerned that preparation is required. She does not believe 
she should be required to ask the full Council if she can talk to Councilor Sorte about 
human services and ask staff to put it on the agenda. 

Councilor Sorte opined that HSC does not necessarily need staff support for many 
issues. The knowledge and experience of HSC members can initiate an issue and 
cause a discussion without involving staff support until the committee suggests changing 
an ordinance or something similar. 

Regarding non-profit fragility, Councilor Sorte said he works with many organizations 
that share executive directors. This model can be very efficient financially and it brings 
professionals into the organization. These kinds of topics are valid and HSC members 



Human Services Committee 
February 19, 2013 
Page 5 of6 

should be able to discuss them. It is reasonable that discussions can be held without 
staff support. 

Chair Beilstein said he is happy to add agenda items at a meeting. If a Councilor 
believes the item needs work prior to the meeting, he will contact staff to officially add 
the item to the agenda. 

Mr. Gibb suggested this topic be considered for discussion at the Council work session 
scheduled for later this month. 

Councilor York said this discussion is related to what may be a bigger conversation if the 
public participation goal is adopted by Council. She said she does not feel constrained 
by prior practice, unless there is something in writing. 

Mr. Gibb said there needs to be a discussion about protocol, not necessarily past 
practice. 

In response to Chair Beilstein's inquiry, Mr. Gibb said public meeting laws do not restrict 
what is placed on the agenda, unless it has not been noticed. Each agenda includes 
"other business." 

Councilor Sorte said he would prefer to be alerted to agenda items so he can do 
research prior to the meeting. He noted that county commissioners almost exclusively 
drive their standing-type committee agendas on their own. Legislative committees drive 
their own agendas. Typically, if an item is brought up by the public during a Council 
meeting, the Mayor asks the full Council if the item should be referred to Committee. 

Mr. Gibb said the more traditional model in Corvallis has been to gather additional 
information for Council consideration prior to sending an item to committee. 

Councilor Sorte provided an example of testimony being so compelling that the Mayor 
asked Council about forwarding the issue to committee. 

Chair Beilstein acknowledged that this has occurred in recent years. Moving an issue 
to committee is typically initiated by a Councilor. 

Mr. Gibb said a Council request generally provides staff an opportunity to present more 
information to the full Council and then a decision is made whether to move the issue 
to committee. 

Chair Beilstein noted that during a recent work session, a problem was discussed 
related to one councilor requesting work from staff without the full Council making the 
request. Including the full Council eliminates staff from working for only one Councilor. 



Human Services Committee 
February 19, 2013 
Page 6 of6 

Mr. Gibb reiterated that this discussion could occur with the Mayor and full Council 
during a work session. 

Chair Beilstein said when Councilor York requested a discussion about this topic, he 
immediately began to think about broader work HSC could do by concentrating on the 
important questions that impact the well-being of humans in the community. 

Councilor York clarified that she was thinking about having conversations that could lead 
to taking an issue to Council for further discussion. 

Chair Beilstein said the idea of informing him of agenda items could constitute a public 
meeting. He preferred suggested agenda items go through staff. 

Councilor Sorte said he does not believe asking to add an agenda item would violate 
public meeting law. He will ask the City Attorney's Office for clarification. Suggesting 
an agenda item is different than arguing for or against an issue. 

Councilor York agreed and said passing information on or requesting information is not 
the same as having a conversation. 

Chair Beilstein said typically he will send information via e-mail if he thinks it is of general 
interest to the full Council. It becomes an issue if people are deliberately excluding 
others from decisions. 

The next Human Services Committee meeting is scheduled for 2:00pm on Tuesday, 
March 5 in the Madison Avenue Meeting Room. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mike Beilstein, Chair 




